OFFICE OF THE SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
Peterborough, New Hampshire

CONTOOCOOK VALLEY SCHOOL BOARD
Tuesday, March 18, 2008

ConVal High School - Library

7 p.m.
MINUTES

BOARD ADMINISTRATION
Mary Allen, Beverly Bacon, Richard Bergeron, Supt.
Stewart Brock, Ray Cote, Don Johnson, Asst. Supt.
Gail Cromwell, Butch Estey, Marian Alese, B.A.
Bart Goodeve, Craig Hicks, Linda Potter, SpEd.
Lauren Kirkpatrick, Arthur Knight, Tim Markley, H.R. Dir.
Tom Welden Deb Ames, CVHS

Steve Bartsch, CVHS

Sue Dell, CVHS

Dick Dunning, SMS
Deb Lesure, AES
Gib West, GBS

1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance

Richard Bergeron called the meeting to order at 7:09 p.m. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.
Dick acknowledged and welcomed new Board member Lauren Kirkpatrick representing the Town
of Antrim. He also gave both Stewart Brock and Craig Hicks a strong welcome back.

2. Call for Election of Officers and Introduce New Board Members — Superintendent

Craig Hicks nominated Tom Welden for the position of Board Chair. Butch Estey second.
Tom Welden abstained. All else in favor.

Tom Welden opened up nominations for Vice Chair.
Stewart Brock nominated Craig Hicks for the position of Vice Chair. Arthur Knight second.
Unanimous.

3. CVHS Reception/Meet Students (Pg. 1)

Sue Dell, CVHS Principal, welcomed everyone to the high school. She said that everyone
will be provided the opportunity to stretch out in the building tonight. She introduced Deb
Ames and Steve Bartsch, both Assistant Principals, Joe Hayes, Director of Guidance and Amy
Gilmet, Special Education Coordinator. Sue said that the experiences of our students will be
shared tonight. In the Library tonight, are some of the 3™ place cheerleading team, present to
show a clip of their routine. In addition, Virtual High School students are present tonight with
Heather Daly, who teaches Chinese through Virtual High School to provide VHS examples.
Special Olympians are present tonight along with Maggie Murphy and Mary Maughn who travel
with the students. A rep from the NH All-State Band is present tonight, Krystal Bloom. Four
saxophonists greeted you tonight. One of two NH Youth Senators, Emily Rapp, is present to meet
with Board members. Chris Heider and Nancy Gagnon recently traveled to Japan with a group of



students and are here to speak about their experience. The Robot and Robotics Team members
are present tonight along with the Ocean Bowl team with competition clips. The Ocean Team will
be submitting a request to travel to Alaska to further compete. In addition, fifteen students are
present who competed in the Scholastic Arts Awards to show you their work. Sue encouraged
everyone to visit and enjoy refreshments.

4. Minutes (Board Vote Required)

a. March 4, 2008 (Pgs. 2-6)
Beverly Bacon moved to accept the minutes of the March 4, 2008 meeting. Craig Hicks
second. Lauren Kirkpatrick abstained. All else in favor.

5. Public Comment
None.

6. Consent Agenda

a. Snow Day Waiver Info from Commissioner Tracy (Pg. 7)
Dick Bergeron referenced the memo submitted from Commissioner Tracy in tonight’'s packet. He
said that we have currently had four snow days and eight delayed days. In the past, it was
practice to include the ten days in the calendar. Some time ago, it was decided, for whatever
reason, to discontinue adding those ten days in the calendar. Waivers have to be for extraordinary
situations. Item “c” states that Kindergartens are not required to make up time because
Kindergarten is not mandatory. In the future, this will have to be looked at further.
Gail Cromwell asked if there has been any talk about changing the calendar next year. Dick said
that the calendar committee will discuss further. Tom Welden said that there has not been much
support for eliminating either the February or April vacation.
Don Johnson said that adding early release days for staff development are the only items on the
calendar.
Tom said that the last day of school for students will be June 20™ at this point in time.

b. Suspension Report (Pgs. 8-9)
Dick Bergeron said that what was discovered at the last leadership meeting was that the
suspension report information reflects answers to questions. We don'’t like the questions. We will
revisit how suspensions are reported. For example, an in-school suspension still allows a student
to have access to the regular curriculum.
Butch Estey asked if the high school could be lumped together, the middle-schools lumped
together and the elementary schools lumped together as well.
Tom said that a non-public report and public report could be generated.
Dick said that there are issues with the categories that will be revisited as well.
When connections indicating certain trend lines, questions began to arise. Bart Goodeve asked if
there was standardization at the data collection point.
Beverly Bacon said that the difference could be seen once PBIS rolled out.
Craig said that for some time, this information was going to Butch Estey. Tom said that it is coming
to him (Tom) and he distributes it to the Board. Bart said that he is interested to see how it
changes when the questions are refined.

7. Superintendent’s Report and Presentation of Business
a. Request to Accept a Gift or Donation (Board Vote Required) (Pgs. 10-11)
1. Hancock Elementary School has received from Kristen and Paul Mathewson, a
Galileo Telescope for the purpose of enriching the current science curriculum



Arthur Knight moved to accept the gift/donation as read. Stewart Brock second.

Ray Cote asked if in the future an estimate could be listed to value the donation.

Dick Bergeron asked if the Board had a bench mark award that places donations and gifts on the
agenda. Tom said that he is unsure if there is a policy that regulates this. Dick said that past
practice set a level of $500.00 and above and items that required future maintenance costs to be
placed on the agenda. A letter of thanks will be sent for all items. Bart said that it might be nice
once a year to have a development report. Unanimous.

2. South Meadow School has received from the Daniels Foundation a donation of
$1500 for the purpose of education and outreach programs at the SMS Library
3.
Stewart Brock moved to accept the gift/donation as read. Gail Cromwell second.
Unanimous.

b. Voting Results (Pg. 12)
Dick said that the revised list reflects the Francestown new numbers. Francestown originally
reported incorrect numbers. The outcome was not changed.
Mary Allen said that the ballot was different from what was printed in the Annual Report. She
asked the reason for this change. Statements about Board recommendation were not there.
Dick said that Denise McLenon is on vacation and he will ask this question of her when she
returns. Dick added that the work that Denise did and the responsibilities that fell on Denise’s
shoulders with the change in vote for the Town of Peterborough were great. Dick said that he will
provide an answer when Denise returns. There was a break in past practice with Board
recommendation.

c. District and State Class Size (Pgs. 13-15)
Dick said that he was asked to apply the State guidelines with adequacy figures. This information
is included in tonight’s packet.
Gail asked where we would like to go with this. We would need this information before budgeting
for next year.
Dick said that there is no research to suggest that student performance is affected either way with
large or small classrooms. This decision needs to be a community based decision.
Tom asked if the Board wanted to take any action tonight. Dick said that it is not a policy
statement. It is suggested as a guideline that incorporates Board feelings over the years. Dick
said that he hit the middle of the target when researching other districts. It is notification. Bart
suggested that this information be recognized and let the conversation evolve when there is an
issue or strong position felt one way or the other. Bart said that he does not know if anything
needs to be said by vote.
Tom said that the question raised is “do we have guidelines”? They are not policy but we could
state that we do have current guidelines. Bart said that he was fine with that.
Stewart said that it is important to put something out formally. Stewart suggested that the wording
be stated that when numbers approach a certain level that recognition take place.
Tom polled the Board with the addition of the word “approach” or exceeds”.
There was a unanimous sense of the Board

d. Personnel (Pgs. 16-23)
Nominations:
GBS:
Pete Ketchum Floor Hockey $ 597.61
Carrie Whittemore Softball $2105.61



Peter Lamb Baseball $2105.61
Scott Baldwin Track & Field $2105.61

Tim Markley, read the nominations listed above. No questions were asked.

Resignations:

GBS:

Erik Anderson Baseball

Brian Whittemore Softball
SMS:

Megan Mahan Grade 7 Math and Science
PES:

Mia Manning-Osborn Grade 2
Tim Markley read the resignations listed above. No questions were asked.

Butch Estey moved to accept the nominations and resignations as read. Mary
Allen second. Unanimous.

e. Monthly Events Calendar (March/April) (Pgs. 24-25)
A copy of the remaining March calendar as well as the April calendar is included in tonight’s
packet.

8. Old Business

a. Reminder and Topic Areas — Saturday, March 29 Board Workshop
Tom said that meeting dates will be decided upon at the March 29" meeting. Tom asked the
Board members to provide major topics that the Board should drill down on in the upcoming year.
The list will be shortened. Tom said that he wants to know what is important to the Board. It can
be from subcommittees or general education areas. Tom asked that the Board email him with their
thoughts.
Sub-committee choices for Board members will be decided. Tom said that all of the areas
including negotiations will be available. He wanted to know what each Board member was
interested in.
Discussion will take place on how this Board wants to operate and how we can be more efficient.

b. Select Architect for ADA Project
Craig Hicks said that interviews took place during the Budget & Property meeting. Four architects
were interviewed. One firm did a considerable amount of work and came into the building to take a
look. Green principles are of interest. Craig said that he is confident that the work will hold out.
Banwell Architect was the firm of interest. They have worked on over 100 schools. They have
extensive experience. Craig said that there were two very good presentations.

Craig Hicks motioned to accept Banwell Architects. Arthur Knight second.

Ray Cote said that they were superb, competent and a middle sized Architect of Record.

Dick Bergeron said that the Architect of Record that will be voted on came back to the Board with
an overview which was very attractive.

Unanimous.



9. New Business
Marian Alese distributed a copy of the MS22 and asked the Board to sign each of the three copies.

Don Johnson distributed a copy of NECAP data which included both Vermont and Rhode Island
information on their testing.

10. Approval of Manifests (Board Vote Required)

Marian certified that manifests 101 — 108 totaling $660,118.42 and Sub Run 126 and 127 totaling
$20,294.31 as well as Payroll 19 and 19.1 totaling $1,395,934.61 have been reviewed by me and
found to be proper charges against the Contoocook Valley School District for goods and/or
services received and have been properly processed prior to their submittal to the School Board.
Craig Hicks moved to accept the approval of the manifests as read. Arthur Knight second.
Unanimous

11. Non-Public Session: RSA 91-A:3,lic
a. Personnel

Craig Hicks moved in accordance with RSA 91-A:3,llc to enter non-public session for
matters of personnel, negotiations and legal matters.

Butch Estey motioned to seal the minutes of non-public session at 9:50. Arthur Knight
second. Unanimous.
Tom thanked everyone for renominating him tonight as Board Chair.

Motion to adjourn at 9:51 p.m. Unanimous on a roll call vote.

Respectfully submitted,

Brenda Marschok



